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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Situated at West Olney Road and Stockley Gardens in Norfolk, Christ and St. Luke's
Church is a long, narrow building of rough~faced random ashlar in the English Perpendicular
Gothic Revival style. The plan of the church is that of a traditional gable~rcof basilica.

The main (south} facade at 560 West Olnaey Road is dominated by an entrance and bell
tower. The tower is visually divided into four stages by smooth-polished stone belt
courses that contrast with the rough ashlar. The first stage of the tower contains the
main entrance of the church, consisting of a drop-arch double door topped by a blind
transom. Carved stone quatrefoils ornament the spandrel. The door is encased in a highly
ornamented frame, and the jambs are decorated with mid-relief carvings, including statues
of St. Peter and St. Paul which occupy niches to the left and right of the door. Paired
stained-glass windows topped by label molds occupy the tower's west elevation. The tower's
second stage consists of arched stained-glass windows. The third stage of two stories is
conposed of small casement windows set between stone pilasters. The tower's fourth stage
is comprised of the bell tower. Paired arched openings decorated with tracery constitute
the fenestration. The top of the tower is crowned with battlements and pinnacles with
crockets. - :

Adjoining the tower is the nave of the church. The south elevation contains a large
drop-arch, stained-glass window embellished with trefoil panel tracery. A2angle buttresses
define the corners of the nave. A small canopied niche in the gable contains a statue of
Christ. A cross marks the apex of the gable.

The west elevation contains the Stockley Gardens entrance. Enclosed within an angle-
buttressed porch, the drop-arch entry contains paneled double doors crowned by a blind
transom. Carved stone quatrefoils . ornament the spandrel. A statue of St. Stephen is
contained within a canopied niche above the doorway. On the aisle, arched stained-glass
windows are ornamented with panel tracery. The clerestory contains elongated arched
stained-glass windows with panel tracery. A transept contains a stained-glass lancet on
the second story. The corners of the aisle are defined by angle buttresses.

The north end of the church contains the chancel. BAbove the altar is an arched
stained-glass window with panel tracery. The east elevation contains a side entrance
enclosed within a buttressed porch.- A lancet window is found above the double-~doox entry,
similar in execution to that found on the west elevation. Fenmestration mirrors that found
on the west elevarion.

Christ and St. Luke's contains a distinguished interior. The focal point of the
interior is the Newton Memorial reredos behind the main altar. The central figure of
the reredos is Christ, the Good Shepherd. Then, beginning with the Apostolate and
continuing through history, it contains statues of the bishops of the Greek, Roman, and
English churches who carried the apostolic succession to the first bishop in America
(Seabury) and the first bishop in Virginia (Madison). On either side of the reredos are
the four Evangelists. A carved relief of the Last Supper decorates the area immediately
behind the altar. The memorial statues in canopied niches over the columns in the nave
supplement the reredos and carry the history of the church through the ages. (Hughs, p. 4)

In the Selden Memorial Chapel, to the east of the main altar, the statues represent
the womanhood of the church. 1In the center of the reredos is a statue of the Virgin
Mother with the Christ Child. Other statues represent, left to right on the Gospel side:
St. Hilda and St. Elizabeth; and on the Epistle side: St. Monica and Pocahontas. To the

left of the reredos is St. Perpetua, and to the right is St. Blandina. Four angels grace
(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Christ and St. Luke's Church, an architectural monument in the English Perpendicular
style, is one of the State's outstanding examples of the Late Gothic Revival. The church
is also a direct descendant of the earliest Episcopal church in the venerable Elizabeth
River Parish. Erected as Christ Church in 1909-1910, the plans of the present edifice
on West Olney Road are the work of the Philadelphia firm of Watson and Huckle.

A parish church was established in Norfolk at Sewell's Point in 1637. The church
later moved to Church Street and in 1739 was renamed the Borough Church. It was then the
only church of Elizabeth River Parish. 1In 1788 a congregational split occurred separating
the followers of William Bland (the minority) and Alexander Whitehead. Bland was subse-
quently "degraded" from the ministry by Bishop Madison, and the Whitehead contingent was
recognized as the rightful representatives of the Norfolk Borough Church at the Diocesan
Convention in 1790. 1In 1800 the Whitehead group left the 1739 building and erected a new
church across the street, renaming it "Christ Church". This building was destroyed by
fire in 1827 and was replaced by a Greek Revival building on Freemason Street which the
congregation abandoned in 1910 for its new Cothic edifice on West Olney Road. By 1803 the
Bland group that retained possession of the old building had died out, and the old chuxch

"was used as a Sunday School. The Episcopal Congregation of Norfolk grew, and in 1832 a 5
group of members of Christ Church formed the St. Paul's Congregation. Christ Church
supported the group and allowed them the use of the 1739 building. Further separation
occurred in 1871, when a group from both Christ Church and St. Paul’s formed a new
congregation, called St. Luke's. The St. Luke's congregation merged with Christ Church in
1935 to form the present Christ and St. Luke's. ‘ :

At the time of the church's building, a new spirit of admirxation for the Gothic stylei
had swept America. Inspired by Henry Adams's Mont St. Michel and Chartres, a new, more h
sophisticated interest was kindled, resulting in a genuine reverence and popularization y
of the Gothic. Unlike the Gothic Revival of the mid-nineteenth century, the twentieth-
century revival was more academic and archaeological in nature, as exemplified in the 3

~architecture of Ralph Adams Cram and his followers. Cram's heloved English Gothic,
particularly the Perpendicular and Tudoxr modes, became the primary source for the new !
architectural style.

Watson and Huckle, who designed Christ and St. Luke's in the Perpendicular style,
were Philadelphia architects whose firm specialized in ecclesiastical architecture,
Contemporaneous with the Norfolk church, the firm designed a nurber of public buildings
that included the Catholic Church of the Epiphany in Philadelphia and -St. Mary's Episcopal
Church in Frankford, Pennsylvania.

Erected in stone, Christ and St. Luke's is among the purest expressionsof Gothic
architecture in Virginia. The church, through the complementary use of beautifully carved
detailing and richly colored stained glass, is a successful adaptation of the English ]
Perpendicular style to the worship of Episcopalians. It is particularly fitting that the

(See Continuation Sheet #2) R
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7. DESCRIPTION

the base of the reredos. The ornamentation of leafage is dogwood. The figure in the
stone lectern is the Archangel Gabriel of the Annunciation. (Hughs, pp. 4-5)

The north stained-glass window complements the main reredos and contains Christ in Glory,
surrounded by princes and clerics of the church. The windows of the Selden Chapel depict
the infancy and boyhood of the Lord, with the baptism in the last bay where the font is
placed. The east aisle windows illustrate the ministry and teaching of Christ. The
_subject of the stained glass in the east vestibule is St. Paul; that in the tower
vestibule, St. John the Baptist, preaching. The west window over the bishop's throne has
two traditional figures of angels. The interior preserves its original furniture
designed for the church building. (Hughs, p. 2)

The main church edifice is complemented by an adjoining two-story parish house and
bookstore. The yard in front of the parish house is entered through a wooden lych gate.
The main entrance consists of a drop-arch double doorway. The outer double- door'is sur-
mounted by a trefoil tracery transom. The inner doorway is composed of glass and
paneled double doors. Carved stone quatrefoils ornament the spandrels. Flanking the
main entrance, first-story, stained-glass casement windows are crowned by drip stone
roldings. Second-story, drop-arch windows also contain stained-glass windows with panel
tracery. Buttresses terminating in finely carved gablets define the entrance pavilion.
Angled buttresses frame the bays of the parish house. The north elevation of the parish
house is connected to the parish bookstore by a one-story walkway.

Located at 618 Stockley Gardens, the bookstore is a two-story, rough-faced, random
ashlar and wood-frame house designed in the bungalow style. The stone first story is
dominated by a Doric columned porch which shelters the main entrance. The second story
is covered by wood shingles and features simply framed, 1/1 hung-sash windows. Dormers
project from a hip roof,.

RCC

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATICN

The nominated property of Christ and St. Luke's consists of one-and-a-half acres of
land. The property is bounded on the south by Olney Road, on the west by Stockley
Gardens, on the north by Boissevain Avenue, and on the east by adjacent property of the
next city lot. The property fronts on 560 West QOlney Road. The nominated acreage is the
same as when Christ's Church was erected in 1909/10 and includes the church, parish house,
and bookstore--all owned by the church and on the original church lot of 1909.

RCC
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8. SIGNIFICANCE
reredos statues represent historical dignitaries of the Episcopal Church in Virginia as

well as America.
The congregation still retains possession of the communion ser¥ice of the colonial

: church.
MTP/RCC
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CHRIST AND ST. LUKE'S CHURCH, Norfolk, Va.
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